AIRBORNE JTRS INDUSTRY DAY

(28-31 OCTOBER 2002)

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS FROM ONE-ON-ONES


Please note these responses are based on our intended acquisition strategy.  This strategy is currently going through senior level review and will likely be finalized/approved no earlier than Jan 03.   Our goal for releasing the Phase 1 Request for Proposal is Jan 03. 

ACQUISITION STRATEGY/PROGRAMMATICS:
1.  What is the overall acquisition strategy? (e.g., is there a down-select from Phase 1?; do you want a radio builder, lead systems integrator, or combo?; what is the plan for competition in LRIP and beyond?)

The following is a synopsis of our intended acquisition strategy.  We are in the process of reviewing responses to our RFI; thus the following information on our intended strategy may change.  Moreover, over the next few weeks as we seek senior-level approval of our intended acquisition strategy we will post any significant changes on the HERBB. 

Phase 1

· Full and Open Competition; firm fixed price (FFP) contract. Based on affordability, two (2) contractors will be selected for Phase 1.  Each will be tasked to accomplish all objectives in the Phase 1 SOO.  

· Two key objectives for Phase 1A (7 month effort):  1) Each contractor will receive products from the ongoing work by Lincoln Laboratory and will be tasked to define airborne network attributes and performance standards and a recommended onboard network architecture. The Government will synthesize these recommendations to define a consolidated set of standards to provide to Cluster 4 platform program offices to consider as a minimum set of requirements for their aircraft modifications to incorporate the new features offered by systems such as JTRS, MP-CDL, or FAB-T.  2) Each Phase 1 contractor will also collect information from Cluster 4 platforms (all Services) regarding legacy interfaces and volume/power/cooling (etc.) constraints.  From this information and in light of platform demands for new capabilities, each contractor will recommend a design concept for a modular family of Cluster 4 radios to meet the variety of platform constraints and interfaces.  
· Some measures of merit for the design concept include: 1) the ability of the packaging concept (modularity, number of variants, etc) for Airborne JTRS to minimize total ownership cost, especially the total cost of the radio A-kit and B-kit combined, including installation labor costs 2) Logistics/maintenance life cycle costs should also be considered when recommending the packaging scheme for the Cluster 4 family of radios.
· Phase 1B (approx. 12-14 month effort): commences at same time as Phase 1A and continues while source selection is ongoing for Phase 2.  Purpose is to continue efforts that will buy down risk and reduce the overall schedule for Phase 2.  There may be some minimum essential risk reduction or proof of concept tasks required.  The Government will also ask Phase 1 bidders to propose whatever tasks they deem necessary to accomplish in Phase 1B to increase the maturity of the Airborne JTRS design going into Phase 2, based on affordability within Phase 1.  
· Phase 1 source selection evaluation criteria may include: the ability of contractor to complete Phase 1 analyses as well as competence to continue into Phase 2; the affordability and feasibility of your plan for collecting platform constraint details from the aircraft integrating contractors; the ability of the packaging concept for the Airborne JTRS family of radios to minimize total ownership cost.
Phase 2

· Full and Open Competition; cost plus award fee (CPAF) contract. If a contractor did not successfully compete for Phase 1 but remained in tune with program requirements (via information posted on the HERBB, including Lincoln Laboratory study results) and demonstrated sufficient effort (similar to Phase 1B), they could be competitive for Phase 2.  
· The scope of Phase 2 is the continuation of Phase 1B activities.  Phase 2 is Airborne JTRS system development and demonstration, delivery of engineering design models, system testing and certification, and priced options for the Low Rate Initial Production (LRIP) of the Airborne JTRS radio sets.  Since we expect Phase 1A results to provide concepts for the evolutionary acquisition of Cluster 4 capabilities, we expect to define a “waterfall” schedule for Phase 2 design, testing, certification, and production of the successive Cluster 4 increments.  We have not yet determined how many increments will be included in the Phase 2 contract versus subsequent contracts.  This will likely be decided based on evaluation of Phase 1A recommendations.
· Our intended strategy is similar to the Cluster 1 SDD strategy.  We expect industry to determine the lead and support roles and missions for participants.  During SDD we will have a lead system contractor (prime to the Government) that will have a hardware exclusion clause.  The hardware exclusion is required because we want the prime to qualify two independent sources to produce the family of Cluster 4 radios; we want two competent sources for several reasons.   This will give us price competition in production; moreover, it will ensure adequate access to broad radio design expertise to address the integration requirements of up to 100+  platform types.  
· Phase 2 period of performance will be whatever credible schedule is proposed for SDD, including design, test and certification, as well as the time needed for LRIP buys to provide OT&E test assets and LRIP units for earliest platform needs.  As discussed at Industry Day, we're looking for alternatives/suggestions from Industry to shorten the schedule. 

2.  What, if anything is the desired relationship between Cluster 4 and Cluster 1 contractors? How do you expect a Phase 1A contractor to interface w/Cluster 1 and will Cluster 1 allow the participation? 
We would like the Cluster 4 contractor team to receive lessons learned and technical insights from the Cluster 1 contractor team.  Since the Cluster 1 contract includes development of common JTRS waveforms that are to be ported into all JTRS hardware solutions, there will be a contractual vehicle for Cluster 4 contractors to interface with Cluster 1.  How we do that is TBD.
3.  What is the Government’s intention concerning small business participation?
We will require the prime contractor(s) to provide us their small business plan(s).

4.  Will Airborne JTRS Cluster 4 Program fund Associated Contractor Agreements with platform primes?  No, the Airborne JTRS program office will not establish ACAs with platform primes in Phase 1.  Any relationships with platform primes are expected to be established by the Phase 1 bidding contractors.  

5.  What funding is available for industry efforts?  Do you anticipate additional funding?

Funding for industry effort on Phase 1 is $11.3M in FY 03 and a portion of $11M in FY04.     FY 04 funds must be split to cover completion of Phase 1B efforts, and start up of Phase 2 in late 3QFY04.  The funding for industry efforts in FY 04 may increased from $11M to as much as $41M but this has not been finalized.  The finalized FY 04 amount should be known in time for the Phase 1 RFP release.  The funding for Phase 1 efforts in FY 03 and FY 04 would be split between the two selected contractors. 
6.  How many units do you expect to be provided for the programmed funding?  

The number of units expected for the anticipated funding is not finalized.  Draft requirements are shown in the draft migration plans posted on HERBB but have not been aligned specifically with annual funding amounts in the current POM.

7.  Is there a host platform integration cost goal?  

Our goal is to minimize non-recurring and recurring platform integration costs as much as possible (to the extent that helps reduce total ownership costs) and to not dampen efforts with a cost goal.

8.  Is the Phase 1 effort targeted to teams led by the 3 OEMs – Boeing, Lockheed, and Northrop? We have not targeted the work to any particular contractor.  It will be up to the marketplace to determine teaming arrangements, if any.
9.  At what point will all requirements be defined?
They will be defined for the Phase 2 RFP as a result of the Phase 1A contracts deliverables (draft Phase 2 SOO objectives and performance-based requirements statements for the Phase 2 Performance Requirements Document (PRD)).
10.  Will there be a Government/Industry IPT?
The Government will provide ongoing clarifications and guidance to the two parallel Phase 1 contractors.  We are not planning a formal IPT structure since we do not want the Government to unduly influence the direction taken by the contractors, nor do we want to homogenize the parallel efforts of the contractors.  
11.  Has the Government precluded any reuse/leverage of Cluster 1 development efforts? 
No, it is for industry to analyze the potential for reuse or leverage from other JTRS efforts. 

12.  Will the Government clarify SOO Para 5 – Intellectual Property?
The Government desires to create a top-level architecture where platform constraints are used to craft a family of radios. One driver behind our non-proprietary information request was aimed at airborne network architecture definition.  Therefore, top level airborne network architectures, designs, and standards are to be non-proprietary.  In addition, products of Phase 1A include draft SOO statements and PRD requirements statements for Phase 2.  As such, these recommendations could not be proprietary since parts of them will likely be used or adapted by the Government in the subsequent Phase 2 solicitation.  The Government will not release proprietary technology or competition sensitive information identified as an adjunct to the specific deliverables called out for in Phase 1A.   For your proposed concept for a family of radios you should clearly identify those portions of your Phase 1B deliverables that are proprietary.  

13.  What is the Government’s thought about participation with labs that are not specifically part of Phase 1 or Phase 2 efforts?
The Government has no predetermined position concerning the inclusion of Government Lab technology for the Phase 1 effort.  One goal of Phase 1 is to identify and address platform constraints and use the results to drive the design of a family of radios.  Where Government Labs can best be used is in developing the technology to reduce industry-identified risks. 

14.  What’s the priority among identified platforms?  
We will update the SOO to show a more accurate list of targeted platforms, when available from our users.  We also intend to define a subset number of platforms to focus on in each category (Service/mission). 

15. What is the intended process for sorting through study results to determine which of the N approaches from Phase 1 provides the optimal integration results overall, and to produce the Phase 2 SOO and PRD? 
The process will involve active teaming among ESC/DI, the platform integration program offices, the Services’ lead using commands, and the JTRS Joint Program Office to evaluate the results and build the final SOO and PRD for Phase 2.

OPERATIONAL REQUIREMENTS/TECHNICAL:
 
16.  Are any new WNW features desired? Do you see phase 1 or 2 contractor teams doing WNW development or any development to enhance/modify software? 
The Airborne JTRS contractor(s) will not be tasked to develop or modify any WNW software.  That is not the intent of mentioning WNW in our Phase 1 SOO.  To date, we know of no new requirements needed for WNW.   The JTRS JPO is responsible for procuring the WNW design and software.  We are working with the WNW development agency to ensure appropriate airborne-related networking requirements are part of WNW performance requirements.  Lincoln Laboratory will have completed early work in this vein and results will be provided to industry by the time Phase 1 is awarded.  In light of this, the Phase 1 objective for industry is very limited.  The task will be to identify, if any, WNW requirements not already in the FDD in support of your recommendation for the architecture and attributes of an end-to-end airborne C4ISR network.    If any changes were necessary and supportable, we would work these via the JTRS JPO.  

17.  Will information be available on how the platforms will incrementally add operational capability by taking advantage of JTRS as well as Airborne Networking capabilities? Are you planning to replace existing systems on aircraft or is this for future systems only?
Airborne JTRS could be used to replace legacy systems if that would resolve performance or aging/obsolescence issues.  Airborne JTRS will also be procured for installation on new production aircraft. We will be working with the Services’ requirements offices and their respective platform integration offices.  The migration plans posted on the HERBB are in rough draft.  Prior to the Phase 1 RFP release, we expect additional information on how the platforms plan to evolve their capabilities.

18.  Is the Airborne Network, as envisioned by the program office, operating at system high or MLS?
Some of the platforms will process data with different classification levels.  The implementation approach is not defined and is likely to be evolutionary.  It should be addressed in the Phase 1 airborne network requirements and architecture definition activities.  

19.  Will the WNW software be available from the JTRS library?
Please refer to the Industry Day Briefings posted on the HERBB website.  The briefing titled “Industry Day Brief – JTRS Briefing to Cluster 4” shows that the JTRS JPO schedule for delivering the WNW (Wideband Networking Waveform) is mid-fiscal year 2005.  In the Phase 2 efforts, we will be working with the JTRS JPO in obtaining interim ‘software builds’ from their WNW developer.
20.  What if someone else comes with a software programmable radio? What would you do with it?  
Being a JTRS radio requires more than being software-defined, and also more than just implementing the SCA.  Also, determining the acceptability of such a radio would not be wholly under the control of ESC.  There is a process for becoming accepted as a JTRS-compliant product, which includes involvement by the JTRS JPO, the JTeL, and the Joint Services Working Group.  We would certainly evaluate the merits of such a radio, for example to meet requirements for a platform with a near-term need, based on what ORD requirements were met, among other things.  

21.  Will the WNW replace Link 16?  
In the long term, WNW might serve as the transport mechanism for a future data link that could replace Link 16.  WNW is intended to be the next generation joint data link and is a future step beyond Link 16.
22. Is there a platform integration cost goal?  Is platform integration a part of Cluster 4 contract, and do we have to worry about the antennas and HPAs? Who integrates the GUI function in the aircraft– the Cluster 4 contractor or the aircraft primes?
The Government would like to minimize total ownership cost.  This likely means minimizing the sum of the radio cost and platform integration cost; however, sustainment cost could be a significant driver as well.   Platform integration is currently planned to be the responsibility of the platform system program offices.  Regardless, the overall design has a primary objective to reduce the integration burden as much as practical.  For example, we are working very closely with the Aeronautical Enterprise Office at the Aeronautical Systems Center, and with NAVAIR to determine where the line is drawn between requirements for the B-kit vs. the A-kit (e.g., antennae, HPAs, etc.)  We are collectively concerned about the entire radio and RF suite, from the host platform interface with the network or intercom system through the antenna.  Existing antennas and/or HPAs on aircraft might be reused in some cases, and the radio must have provision to do this.  In other cases, to use the new features JTRS brings, as well as the full flexibility of the software defined radio, it will be necessary to use new, high capability antennas and HPAs.  In general, the ‘platform integrator’ (A-Kit) is responsible for any GUI type interfaces controlled by the on-board computers (OFP).  The JTRS contractor must consider the interfaces with the OFP or the GUI device.  
23.  In the SOO the goal was to connect legacy radios in the C4ISR network.  What constitutes a legacy radio?
In general we have been referring to any existing radio other than JTRS as a legacy radio, and any waveform developed prior to JTRS, i.e., any waveform other than WNW, as a legacy waveform.
24. Does the Airborne JTRS program office currently support platforms like F-22, JSF, etc?
Not presently.  Based on their architecture, these systems are developing their own integrated solutions.   Current requirements are shown in the draft migration plans posted on HERBB.
25. Does the Government feel that teams will be duplicating efforts in developing draft ICDs?
At Industry Day briefing, we discussed draft ICDs as an example of a useful product of Phase 1B.  In actuality, for Phase 1B, we are looking for the bidders to propose useful tasks that would accelerate our Phase 2 schedule without undue risk.  See response to Question 1 above. 
26.  Will the Government require demonstrations in Phase 1 for risk reduction?
We have not required demonstrations; if you recommend and justify them, we would consider them.
27. What part of co-site interference issues should be focused on in Phase 1? How will co-site interference mitigation be achieved (i.e. external/internal to radio, platform specific, etc.)?
We expect industry to identify Phase 1A and 1B activities to best reduce the Phase 2 risk and schedule.  The Airborne JTRS design will need appropriate co-site characteristics to allow platforms to integrate the radios cost-effectively.  We will be relying on the contractors to help define what capabilities will be external or internal to the radio set.  In general, the radio set should include capabilities that are common to multiple platforms, and should provide appropriate interfaces to allow integration with external co-site equipment.  

28.  For the large aircraft, who provides the internal platform network design, e.g., how are the Airborne JTRS and MC2A charters linked?   Any plan to include non-JTRS wideband networking waveforms such as MP-CDL and FAB-T into the JTRS Cluster 4 architecture?   With JTRS on an aircraft, there could be a larger amount of data to be integrated/processed.  Who is looking at added throughput/data handling considerations?  

These questions are still being addressed as part of our collaboration with our platform customers and users.  We don't expect the MC2A to develop unique radios for their platform.  We expect them to be a JTRS user.  Also, there’s no plan to incorporate MP-CDL or FAB-T capabilities into JTRS; however, our goal is for the Airborne Network architecture to support those other systems.  We intend to provide the architecture and top level design to platform managers to adapt to their specific platform.  We're collaborating with MC2A and with programs like MPCDL and FAB-T in defining common requirements for an Airborne C4ISR Network.  We intend to create an Air Force information transport backbone to include management of the platform network.  Management of the information that rides on the network transport layer is the responsibility of the platform as it is tailored to unique requirements.
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